
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Policy Sub Committee 
 
Meeting: Thursday, 11th December 2014 at 6.00 pm in Committee Room 

1, North Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP 
 
 

Membership: Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), McLellan, Smith and Dee 

Contact: Tony Wisdom 
Democratic Services Officer 
01452 396158 
anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.   APPOINTMENTS MADE AT ANNUAL COUNCIL  
 
To note the following appointments made at the Annual Meeting of the Council:- 
 
Chair:  Councillor Taylor 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Lewis 
Members:  Councillors Dee, McLellan and Smith 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or non-
pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please 
see Agenda Notes. 
 

4.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public provided that a question does not relate 
to: 
 

 Matters which are the subject of current or pending legal proceedings, or 

 Matters relating to employees or former employees of the Council or comments in 
respect of individual Council Officers 

  

5.   PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
 
To receive any petitions and deputations provided that no petition or deputation is in relation 
to: 
 



2 
 

 Matters relating to individual Council Officers, or 

 Matters relating to current or pending legal proceedings 

  

6.   COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY  
 
To receive a briefing on the Community Infrastructure Levy by Julie King (JCS Authorities). 
 

7.   CITY PLAN - PROGRAMME AND BUDGET (Pages 5 - 16) 
 
To consider the report of the Head of Planning detailing the Programme and Budget for the 
preparation of the City Plan. 
 

8.   EVIDENCE BASE UPDATE - SUMMARY REPORT  
 
Briefing note to follow. 
 

9.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Thursday, 12 February 2015 at 18.30 hours. 

 
 
 

 
................................................... 
Martin Shields 
Corporate Director of Services and Neighbourhoods 
 
Date of Publication: Wednesday, 3 December 2014 
 
 



 

3 
 

NOTES 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member 
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows – 
 

Interest 
 

Prescribed description 
 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months 
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a 
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil 
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest) 
and the Council 
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or works are 

to be executed; and 
(b)   which has not been fully discharged 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area. 
 

For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or 
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your 
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a 
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
Council’s area for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
 

(a)   the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner 

or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has 
a beneficial interest 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where – 
 

(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land 
in the Council’s area and 

(b)   either – 
i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 

or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 

ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with 



4 
 

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 

For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture 
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme 
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
and other securities of any description, other than money 
deposited with a building society. 
 

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest. 

 

Access to Information 
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date. 
 

For further details and enquiries about this meeting please contact Anthony Wisdom, 
01452 396158, anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

For general enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this 
information, or if you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information 
please call 01452 396396. 
 

Recording of meetings 
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded with the Mayor or Chair’s consent and 
this may include recording of persons seated in the Public Gallery or speaking at the 
meeting. Please notify a City Council Officer if you have any objections to this practice and 
the Mayor/Chair will take reasonable steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is 
complied with.  
 

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, 
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed.  The use of flash photography and/or 
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council 
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:  
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the 

assembly point in the car park and await further instructions; 
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is 

safe to do so. 

 

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/
mailto:anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


PT10012E 1 

 
 

Meeting: Planning Policy Sub-committee 

Cabinet 

Council 

 

Date: 11 December 2014 

28 January 2015 

18 March 2015 

Subject: City Plan – Programme and Budget 

Report Of: Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Culture 

Wards Affected: All   

Key Decision: No Budget/Policy 
Framework: 

Yes  

Contact Officer: Anthony Wilson, Head of Planning  

 Email: anthony.wilson@gloucester.gov.uk  Tel: 396830 

  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To present and seek endorsement of the progress of the City Plan programme and 

associated budget requirements for the Planning Policy Team of £229,000 over the 
next three years. 

 

2.0 Recommendations 
 

2.1 Planning Policy Sub-Committee is asked to RECOMMEND: 
(i) That the next stages of the City Plan work programme as set out in this 

report be endorsed; and  
(ii) That a further report be prepared on the City Plan work programme once the 

Joint Core Strategy (JCS) has been adopted; and 
(iii) That the City Plan future budget requests set out at paragraph 8.2 of this 

report be approved. 
 

2.2 Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE:  
(i) That the next stages of the City Plan work programme as set out in this 

report be endorsed; 
(ii) That a further report be prepared on the City Plan work programme once the 

Joint Core Strategy (JCS) has been adopted. and  
(iii) That the City Plan future budget requests set out at paragraph 8.2 of this 

report be considered by Council as part of the budget proposals for 2015/16. 
 
And to RECOMMEND that the City Plan future budget requests in this report be 
approved. 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

mailto:anthony.wilson@gloucester.gov.uk


PT10012E 2 

2.3 Council is asked to RESOLVE: 

 
(i) That the contents of this report be noted; and  

(ii) That the City Plan future budget requests set out at paragraph 8.2 of this 
report be approved as part of the budget proposals for 2015/16. 

 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 The Council has a statutory responsibility under section 13 of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to prepare and keep up to date a development plan 
for the City.  In this respect, the Planning Policy Team is preparing two plans that 
will shape the future of planning in the City.  These are the Joint Core Strategy (the 
JCS) and the City Plan.  Together, these plans will provide the planning tools that 
the Council is legally obliged to prepare to support and guide land use change and 
development activity in the City until 2031. 

 
3.2 The JCS will address strategic issues for Gloucester City, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Boroughs and set housing, employment and other infrastructure 
requirements for the three local authorities.  We are working with our neighbouring 
local authorities on this plan because a proportion of the future housing needs of 
the City will have to be met within Tewkesbury Borough.   This plan will be the 
subject of a public examination likely to take place in the spring of 2015.  It is hoped 
that the plan will be adopted towards the end of 2015. 

 
3.3 Alongside the JCS, there is a need for a City Plan.  This second development plan 

will clarify how the policies in the JCS will be applied in the City.  It will set out the 
Council’s priorities for the City Centre and other key sites that will deliver future 
housing and jobs.  It will establish detailed policies against which planning 
applications will be determined and will demonstrate how new infrastructure to meet 
the City’s needs will be funded.  Finally, the City Plan will provide the basis for the 
preparation of any Neighbourhood Plans that may come forward.  It will, in 
particular, be helpful to the Hempsted Community Forum which may prepare its 
own Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
3.4 The Council is currently in a vulnerable position with respect to its statutory duty to 

prepare an adopted development plan. The now outdated adopted development 
plan dates back to 1983 and the Council has endorsed use of the second stage 
deposit plan 2002 for development management purposes in the absence of a more 
advanced plan. Without an up-to-date plan, the City runs the risk of uncoordinated 
development being approved as a result of planning permissions granted on 
appeal.  This is not only costly, due to planning officer resource being diverted into 
managing and resourcing the appeal process, but is also not in the best interests of 
the environment or our communities.  Properly planned development, delivered in 
the context of a robust planning strategy helps ensure high standards of design in 
all new development with supporting infrastructure in place.  It is also worth noting 
that the planning policy and development management service brings in significant 
resource to the Council in terms of New Homes Bonus.  House building in the city 
resulted in an allocation of over £2m for 2013/14.  Put simply, not having an up-to-
date plan prevents the Council from shaping its own future environment. 

 
 

Page 6



PT10012E 3 

4.0 Work on the City Plan to date 
 
4.1 The Planning Policy Sub Committee gave approval in March 2011 for work to start 

on the City Plan.  In summary, the preparation of the City Plan has to go through a 
number of stages of evidence gathering and the preparation of policies before it can 
be submitted to public examination (as shown in Figure 1 below).  At each stage of 
plan preparation, the Council is obliged to consult and take into account comments 
received.  Work has started slowly on this project principally because of other 
pressures on staff to progress the joint work on the JCS at the same time.   

 

Figure 1 Stages in the preparation of the Gloucester City Plan 
 

Gather evidence

Identify/ scope key issues

Develop vision, development management 
policies, site details and infrastructure 

requirements

Prepare a draft City Plan

Publish a Pre-submission City Plan

Submit plan to Secretary of State

Independent examination

Adoption 

Implementation and monitoring

Engagement stage

C
o

n
su

ltatio
n

 stage
Exam

in
atio

n
 stage

 

4.2 The Council has resolved that the City Plan be prepared on the basis of four 
interlocking parts.  

 Part 1 will set out the overarching development challenges and development 
principles 

 Part 2 will set out development management policies 

 Part 3 will set out a locally based approach to places and site opportunities 

 Part 4 will deal with site delivery and infrastructure provision.  

Page 7



PT10012E 4 

 
Review of progress to date on the City Plan 
 
City Plan Scoping Exercise  

 
4.3 The first action undertaken by officers was a City Plan Scoping document.  This 

was the subject of public consultation between May and August 2011. The findings 
of this consultation exercise were reported back to the Planning Policy Sub-
Committee in November 2011 and the key principles and work priorities were 
incorporated into future work on the emerging City Plan.  
 
City Plan Part 1 

 
4.4 Using responses from the City Plan Scoping consultation, Part 1 of the City Plan 

was drafted and was consulted upon in March and April 2012.  This section 
describes Gloucester’s development journey, that is, where it has come from, where 
it is now and where it strives to position itself in the future. It also recognises the 
City’s transformation resulting from significant development investment and 
provides the framework to accommodate ongoing growth and regeneration. 

 
4.5 Part 1 also identifies key challenges for the City relating to accommodating its 

growing population whilst providing the necessary supporting infrastructure, 
challenges around delivery of a good mix of housing, addressing the problems 
being experienced in the City’s more deprived wards, the strengthening of the 
economy as well as improving its overall image and the perception of its centre and 
retail experience. Development pressure within the City also needs to be balanced 
with protection of Gloucester’s valuable natural environment, open spaces and built 
heritage which should be preserved and, wherever possible, positively enhanced. 

 
4.6 City Plan Part 1 also identifies key development principles which will provide the 

building blocks to guide growth going forward to 2031. This includes: 

 The incorporation of the development principles identified within the JCS; 

 the need to deliver a transforming city which brings regeneration benefits;  

 the primacy of Kings Quarter retail led regeneration of the City Centre and it 
acting as a catalyst for the wider regeneration of the City; and 

 the need to deliver a city to live in, work in, enjoy and be proud of, that is safe, 
healthy and connected. 

Part 3: Places and Sites, City Centre Strategy 

4.7. The Planning Policy Service undertook a further consultation from May to July 2013 
on Part 3 of the Plan.  This part of the Plan focuses on the individual Wards within 
the City.  The consultation sought views on the available development sites in each 
area as well as feedback on Ward Profiles.  Feedback was also sought on a draft 
City Centre strategy which seeks to manage the changes that the City Centre is 
expected to experience as our retail centres move forward and our shopping habits 
change.   

4.8 No substantive further work has been undertaken on the City Plan due to pressures 
to progress the JCS and the need to allocate existing planning policy budgets to 
fund the evidence base to support the JCS.  It iis now proposed that work moves 

Page 8



PT10012E 5 

forward on the remaining elements of the City Plan, this would involve the 
preparation of development management policies for inclusion within Part 2 of the 
Plan and the preparation of the Plan’s implementation programme which would 
provide detail on site delivery and infrastructure provision.  Additional resources are 
sought to progress the preparation of the City Plan in order to commission the 
additional evidence base required in order to progress a Plan that will be found 
‘sound’ at Examination. 

5.0 Next stages of the City Plan budget 

5.1 The City Plan needs to go through the following stages before it can be adopted.  

 Prepare supporting evidence required to inform preparation of a sound plan; 

 Review and publish comments and responses arising from the 2013 
consultation; 

 Prepare Part 2 (development management policies) and Part 4 (delivery and 
infrastructure) of the Plan; 

 Prepare and consult on a Draft City Plan (that is, Parts 1-4), and prepare reports 
addressing representations on previous consultations and how the Council has 
responded to them;   

 Refresh Part 1 to reflect new development opportunities in the City, including the 
release of the former HMP Gloucester; 

 Publish Pre Submission version of the Plan for final comment; 

 Submit the City Plan to the Secretary of State; 

 Public examination; and  

 Adopt the City Plan. 
 
5.2 The allocated officer resource to manage and deliver the City Plan is one part time 

Principal Planning Officer (18.5 hours per week, also working on the JCS and other 
City projects which are seen as a priority) and a Neighbourhood Planning Officer 
(currently 10.5 hours per week and involved in supporting the Hempsted 
Neighbourhood Forum and assisting in some City Plan work).  Other officers are 
also allocated work on the City Plan when not involved in JCS activity or other 
planning policy work.  This combined resource is not sufficient to make timely 
progress on the next stages of the City Plan especially as there will be a significant 
officer commitment to the JCS Examination which is expected to take place in April 
2015. 

 
6.0 Additional evidence to support the City Plan 

 
6.1 Working with Cheltenham and Tewkesbury on the JCS has provided much of the 

evidence base which can be used to support the preparation of the City Plan.  In 
addition to this work, officers have also undertaken in-house research/evidence 
base preparation in relation to: 

  

 Housing and employment monitoring 

 Strategic Assessment of Land Availability (SALA) 

 Local District Centres health check 

 Green infrastructure plan for the City 

 GIS mapping work 

 Gypsy and Traveller site assessment 

Page 9



PT10012E 6 

 Assessment of employment sites 

 Open Space Strategy 

 Archaeology assessments 

 
6.2 There are further areas of evidence base preparation which can be undertaken 

within the Council using existing staff resources.  The detailed scope of this 
additional work will be determined as the preparation of the City Plan moves 
forward, but principal areas of work will include: 

 An examination of the operation of the City Centre and its existing 

uses/activities to provide a future strategy for its growth and continued 

health. 

 An Economic Development/Regeneration Strategy to assess the current 

health of the City’s economy and to develop a strategy for future growth. 

 
6.3 However, in addition to the above areas of work, it will be necessary to commission 

additional research for which in house staff do not have expertise.  These are: 
 

(a) A Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulations assessment (this is needed 

legally to show that the Council has appraised the economic, environmental and 

social effects of the City Plan and then to show that the proposals do not affect 

any sites of European wide ecological importance); 

 

(b) A Playing Pitch Strategy which will determine the level of playing fields needed 

to accommodate a growing local population and where these should go; and 

 

(c) A townscape assessment to inform our approach to promoting development in 

the City Centre.  Costs associated with these pieces of work are set out in Table 

1 below. 

 

(d) Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (Level 2) work on sites plus sequential and 

exception test evaluation. 

 

(e) Heritage Impact Assessment. 

 

(f) Traffic modelling assessments of City sites; 

 

(g) Infrastructure provision to support City sites; 

 

(h) Viability assessment of City sites; 

 

(i) Retail assessment of trading position at Quedgley District Centre; 

 

(j) Site assessment/Duty to Co-operate; and 

 

(k) Biodiversity Assessment of City sites. 

Page 10



PT10012E 7 

 
6.4 Officers are obliged to record representations received throughout the plan making 

process and report them to an independent inspector appointed by the Secretary of 
State who will examine the representations made in relation to the City Plan and 
decide if the Council has met its responsibilities in connection with the statutory duty 
to co-operate.  The Council has purchased a bespoke software package used for 
JCS preparation but will need to continue to pay an annual licence fee of £5,600 per 
annum to use the software.  The Council will also need to renew its licences to 
continue to use GIS to do the mapping required for the City Plan at an annual cost 
of £3,000. 

 

6.5 Costs associated with consulting on future stages of the City Plan 

6.6 The Council has legal requirements to notify the public about its Plan and is also 
legally obliged to consult the public in accordance with its Statement of Community 
Involvement (2005).  Three rounds of consultation are anticipated before the City 
Plan can be submitted to the Secretary of State for examination.  Costs likely to be 
incurred include advertisements, document printing and running exhibitions. 

 
6.7 Examination in public and adoption of the City Plan 
 
6.8 The principal costs associated with this are: (a) paying for an independent inspector 

and programme officer to run the examination; (b) venue and other costs 
associated with hosting the examination; and (c) preparing evidence, including the 
use of consultants to defend a technical matter (for example, retail policy).  The 
Council is not in a position to give a firm estimate of the cost of this examination but 
has based its budget on other comparable plans.  It would therefore be prudent to 
make a modest contingency for defending any potential legal challenge the Council 
may receive in connection with the City Plan, and other costs, for example, the 
need to produce extra evidence of a technical nature in response to a request by an 
inspector. 

 
Request for additional support  

 
6.1 Current budgetary estimates for the preparation of the JCS and City Plan currently 

provide £123,000 for 2015/16 and £33,000 for 2016/17.  Of the total of £156,000 
available in these two financial years, £50,000 should be reserved to meet costs 
associated with the Examination and Adoption of the JCS in 2015/16.  Therefore, a 
residual amount of £106,000 would be reserved for the costs associated with City 
Plan preparation. 

 
6.2 This report makes a request for additional funds to be allocated to the Planning 

Policy Team in the financial years 2015/16 – 2017/18 to cover one off costs relating 
to the preparation of the City Plan for: 

 
(a) Additional evidence to support the preparation and adoption of the City Plan; 
 
(b) The costs of consulting on the Plan, document printing and publishing the next 

stages of the City Plan; and  
 
(c) An examination in public and adoption of the City Plan.  

Page 11



PT10012E 8 

 
The indicative costs associated with each of these items are set out in Table 1 of 
this report below. 

 
7.0 Total costs and timescale 
 
7.1 Table 1 below identifies a need for a total budget of £335,000 to finalise the 

preparation of the City Plan.  As is noted in paragraph 6.1 above, £156,000 has 
been allocated towards the costs of JCS and City Plan preparation within current 
budget estimates.  It will be necessary to reserve £50,000 of this sum in order to 
progress the JCS through Examination and adoption in mid-2015, but the remaining 
funding allocation (£106,000) can be wholly committed towards the costs of 
progressing the City Plan. 

 
 Table 1 - City Plan Budget forecast 2015/16 to 2017/18 
 

Workstream 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Playing Pitch Strategy £12,000   

Heritage Townscape Assessment 
/Townscape Character Analysis 

£15,000   

Heritage Site Assessment £15,000   

Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats 
Regulation Assessment 

£14,000 £14,000  

Retail consultancy advice £5,000   

Sequential Flood Risk Assessment/ 
Sequential Test 

£40,000   

Traffic Modelling assessments of City 
Sites 

£30,000   

Infrastructure Provision to support City 
Sites 

£20,000   

Viability assessment of City Sites £20,000   

Site assessment/Duty to Co-operate £15,000   

Biodiversity Assessment of City Sites £10,000   

Consultation (printing, publicity and 
newspaper advertisements) 

£7,500 £7,500  

Examination in Public (inspector time, 
programme officer and venue costs) 

 £50,000 £10,000 

Contingency (legal challenge) and other 
overruns (e.g., longer than anticipated 
examination or need to prepare extra 
technical evidence) 

 £20,000 £20,000 

Annual Totals £202,500 £101,500 £30,000 

Total   £335,000 

Current Budget Allocation   (£106,000) 

ADDITIONAL FUNDING SOUGHT 
  

£229,000 

 

Page 12



PT10012E 9 

7.2 A contingency has been inserted given that more Local Plans have been delayed 
and challenged following the introduction of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  It would also be prudent for the Council to make contingency for a 
legal challenge in this context, but it hoped that such provision would not be 
required. 

7.3 This bid for funds has been prepared on the understanding that the City Plan 
examination will be completed in the financial year 2017/18.  A separate item on the 
Cabinet/ Council agenda sets out the detailed timetable for this Plan and the JCS, 
contained within a revised Local Development Scheme (the LDS).  It also confirms 
how the Council will consult local residents and businesses on the City Plan in what 
is called the Statement of Community Involvement (the SCI).  The Council is 
currently updating its SCI; this will undergo statutory public consultation in 
January/February 2015. 

8. Conclusions 

8.1 This report has outlined progress to date with the City Plan as well as ongoing 
budgetary requirements to deliver a sound Plan. 

 
8.2 A budget of £229,000 is required to progress the City Plan and take it through the 

Examination process. This budgetary requirement is likely to fall over the next four 
financial years. 

 
8.3 It is recommended that resources are built into the forward plan as set out in Table 

1 above for future years up to 2017/18. 
 
9.0 Financial Implications 
 
9.1 The report has set out the budget requirements to deliver a City Plan and take it 

through the Examination process. 
 
9.2 Table 1 above sets out the financial plan over three years, the financial implications 

for the preparation of the City Plan are total project costs of £202,500 in 2015/16, 
£101,500 in 2016/17 and £30,000 in 2017/18. 

 
9.3 However, £106,000 can be committed to the project costs from existing budget 

provisions, leaving a shortfall of £229,000.  This additional expenditure will be a 
budgetary pressure upon the Council’s resources and will reduce funding available 
to other areas. 

 
 (Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report). 
 
10.0 Legal Implications 
 
10.1 The legal implications are as set out in this report.  The Gloucester City Plan will 

ultimately form part of the statutory Local Plan. 
 
 (Legal Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report). 
 
 
 

Page 13



PT10012E 10 

11.0 Risk Management Implications  
 
11.1 It is a statutory responsibility for a Council to have an adopted development plan.  

The Council’s adopted development plan which dates from 1983 is out of date. 
 
11.2 Councils which do not meet their legal obligations and underperform are at risk of 

direct Central Government intervention where planning decisions would be taken 
out of the hands of the local authority.  The current use of a number of statutory and 
non-statutory plans creates additional ‘complications’ for applicants and officers in 
determining planning applications.  A single cohesive document will provide a more 
efficient framework for all parties. 

 
11.3 A failure to progress the preparation of the City Plan within a reasonable timescale 

also places the Council at increased risk from potential future changes to the 
planning system and its accompanying legislation/regulation which could lead to 
abortive work being undertaken. 
 

11.4 The JCS requires a development plan for the City to identify employment, housing 
and retail development sites within its administrative area to fulfil the development 
requirements of the JCS. 
 

11.5 Not pursuing the City Plan and therefore not identifying allocated sites for future 
housing, employment and retail development will make the City vulnerable to ad 
hoc development pressures on the fringes of the City with developers potentially 
challenging the City’s five year housing land supply position.  
 

11.6 The absence of a development plan will result in planning by appeal which will incur 
significant costs and result in ad hoc and inappropriate development across the City 
which has the potential to undermine the role of the City Centre.  The Council may 
also risk substantial costs awards against it if ad hoc applications were refused and 
it was not possible to identify a five year land supply at appeal. 
 

12.0 People Impact Assessment (PIA) 
 
12.1 The preparation of a new development plan such as the City Plan can have both 

positive and negative social impacts on local communities.  PIA is therefore 
incorporated into the statutory Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulation 
Process that the council will have to complete in justifying the spatial strategy for 
the city and development management policies the council will have to adopt.  PIA 
will also be ongoing through the preparation of the City Plan 

 
13.0 Other Corporate Implications 
 
  Community Safety 

 
13.1 The City Plan will be developed to reflect the Council’s community safety 

obligations. 
 
  Sustainability 
 
13.2 The City Plan will reflect the requirement that the planning system should deliver 

development that accords with the principles of sustainable development. 

Page 14



PT10012E 11 

 
  Staffing & Trade Union 
 
13.3  None. 
 
 (Human Resources have been consulted in the preparation of this report). 
 
 
 
Background Papers : Vision/City Plan Consultation Report 2011  

Part 1 Gloucester’s City Plan 2031 Shaping Gloucester’s 
Regeneration journey February 2012 
Part 3 Gloucester’s City Plan Places and City Centre 
Strategy Consultation May 2013 

 
Published Papers  : None 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 City Plan - Programme and Budget

